
 

Approved 1/13/16 

TOWN OF WEST TISBURY 

SELECTMENS MEETING 

Wednesday, December 30, 2015 4:30 p.m. – 5:14 p.m. 

 

Present: Selectmen Cindy Mitchell, Richard Knabel, Skipper Manter, Jennifer Rand 

Also Present: Manny Estrella, John Christensen, Joan Ames 

 

Minutes:  R. Knabel motioned to approve the minutes of 12/9/15 with amendments.  S. Manter 

seconded the motion.  The vote on the motion was unanimous in favor. 

 

Emergency Management Department:  John Christensen, Emergency Management Director, 

said that he was proposing to increase his stipend over two years from $7,000 to $14,500.  This 

year’s stipend request is $10,750.  He said the job is fairly complex and could actually be a half-

time position, but he was using national pay rates to raise the stipend to be similar to a ¼ time 

position.  He said it was important to begin to increase the stipend in order to plan for his 

replacement when he steps down.  He noted that the work he did led to a $20k reimbursement last 

year for snow removal and he has been successful in finding grants for the town, spending more 

time working on the job will likely lead to even more grants.   Cindy asked about the increase in 

the training budget.  John said that his assistant had been going to a number of training classes 

and this compensates him for his lost day.  Richard said he understood the complexities of grant 

writing, and he saw the benefit to the town, he said he had no problem with the stipend increase. 

He asked about the pool of applicants for jobs like this.  John said it was not deep.  Cindy said 

paying for training should help with that.  Skipper said he thought the town should begin to 

increase the stipend to be able to attract and keep qualified people for the position.  He asked if in 

the future the job could be combined with a full-time fire chief.  John said that is not ideal, in an 

emergency situation the Fire Chief is often busy doing other things. 

 

S. Manter motioned to approve the budget with the increases, and the understanding it will 

increase next year as well.  R. Knabel seconded the motion.  The vote on the motion was 

unanimous in favor. 

 

Fire Department Budget: Manny Estrella, Fire Chief, said he had increased his stipend, as well 

as those of the Assistant and Captain to reflect the amount of time spent on the job.  He also 

showed a minor increase in expenses.  He noted that when he retired the next person would 

probably be hired as a full time Chief, and the stipend should reflect that. Skipper said the Board 

should begin to draft job descriptions for this position, the Highway Superintendent and the 

Emergency Manager so they are graded and ready if the town needs to hire someone. 

 

R. Knabel motioned to approve the Fire Department budget.  S. Manter seconded the motion.  

The vote on the motion was unanimous in favor. 

 

Highway Budget: Jen told the Board she had asked the Highway Superintendent to increase his 

stipend by $5k to reflect the wishes of the Selectmen last year to increase his stipend 

incrementally.  The Board agreed with this. 

 

R. Knabel motioned to approve the Highway Superintendent’s stipend increase.  S. Manter 

seconded the motion.  The vote on the motion was unanimous in favor. 

 

Cemetery Fence:  Richard said he wanted to continue to address the disrepair of the fence 

around the West Tisbury Cemetery.  He thought now that funds had been appropriated for the 



 

back section of the fence the next worst section was the fence along State Road. Cindy asked if 

the Board felt there was a desire to keep the fence at all after the vote rescinding all the money to 

fix it.  Skipper said he thought that was a reaction to the overall cost, not a statement on getting 

rid of the fence.  He said he did not think it should be in the budget, he thought it should be more 

transparent because of the previous vote to rescind the funding.  Richard said he thought that 

maintenance of the fence should be part of the annual maintenance funding for the cemeteries. 

Cindy suggested viewing the work as maintenance and adding it to the article this year for 

facilities maintenance funding. 

 

Solar Carport Opportunity:  Jen explained that the Cape and Vineyard Electric Cooperative 

was looking into bundling an opportunity for its members to lease municipal parking spaces for a 

solar carport.  The ideal situation was a lot with at least 50 spots and no shade.  The Board 

determined they did not have an appropriate location to consider. 

 

Utilities Bylaw:  Jen explained that she had spoken with Counsel who agreed that the current 

State Statute does not apply to private individuals that wish to bury power lines in a public way.  

This leaves two options, either the individual must ask for temporary permission from the 

Selectmen and then go to Town Meeting for a vote to grant an easement, or that individual must 

ask the power company to do the work for them.  The Board said they did not wish to be involved 

in the process for temporary permission and town meeting votes so individuals will be guided to 

ask the power company to do work in the public way. 

 

New Streetlight: Jen asked Skipper if he had noticed if the street light had been moved to Pine 

Lane. He said it had, but he still thought there was a need for a new pole and light on State Road 

across from the intersection, this would serve to illuminate the intersection and the bus stop.  Jen 

said there might be an added layer of complexity with a pole on State Road, and if it lolled to be 

difficult would placing the pole on the town land in the triangle be acceptable.  The Board said 

yes. 


